Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

OAK RIDGE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 4, 2025 - 7:00 P.M.

OAK RIDGE TOWN HALL
MINUTES

Members Present Staff Present
Jim Kinneman, Mayor Bill Bruce, Town Manager
Mike Stone, Mayor Pro Tem Sandra Smith, Asst. Town Mgr./Town Clerk
Ann Schneider Michael Thomas, Town Attorney
Michael Greeson Sam Anders, Finance Officer
Members Absent Staff Absent
Jim Harton Sean Taylor, Planning Director

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jim Kinneman called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
A. Invocation
Anthony Howerton offered the invocation.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone made a motion to approve the agenda, and Councilwoman Ann
Schneider seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve the minutes of the August 7, 2025,
regular meeting, and Councilman Michael Greeson seconded. The motion passed unanimously

(4-0).
4, RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS
Mayor Jim Kinneman read a proclamation honoring the life of former Council

member Roger D. Howerton and presented it to Howerton’s family. The
proclamation is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of the minutes.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Councilwoman Ann Schneider, Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone, and Mayor Kinneman
each reflected on the profound impact of Howerton'’s character, both on the Town
and on them personally.

REPORT FROM GUILFORD COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

No report, however, Kinneman drew attention to the increase in incidents of
mailbox thefts of personal checks.

REPORT FROM OAK RIDGE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Firefighter Mark Liberty reported on call statistics for August 2025.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

A

TEXT AMENDMENT. Amendment to Sec. 30-863(b) of the Code of Ordinances
regarding the distances for required water and sewer connections.

Town Manager Bill Bruce introduced the Text Amendment to Sec. 30-863(b), which
is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of the minutes, for
consideration. He explained that the amendment established the circumstances
under which a new subdivision would be required to connect to the municipal water
system. He pointed out that the amendment had been modeled after an ordinance
adopted by the Town of Stokesdale and that the Planning & Zoning Board had voted
unanimously to recommend its approval.

Kinneman opened the public hearing and explained that 20 minutes to speak would
be given to individuals in favor of the rezoning request and another 20 minutes to
those in opposition, followed with a five-minute period of rebuttals for both sides.

Proponents
e Spencer Sullivan, 7917 Quiet Place, noted that the amendment was
unanimously recommended for approval by the Water Advisory Committee.
He explained that the framework of the amendment would facilitate the
extension of the Town'’s water infrastructure and expansion of its customer
base as well as provide developers with access to reliable and predictable
potable water.

Opponents
None

Kinneman closed the public hearing.

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve the proposed text amendment, and
Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone seconded her motion.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Schneider supported approval of the text amendment and recounted a conversation
with the Mayor Pro Tem of Stokesdale, who affirmed the amendment’s effectiveness
in expanding the Town’s water system.

Stone remarked that new developments would initially depend on individual or
community wells until the water main line was completed, but the text amendment
would facilitate their connection to the municipal system once the infrastructure
was installed. He noted that unanimous support from both the Planning & Zoning
Board and the Water Advisory Committee further underscored the amendment’s
viability.

Councilman Michael Greeson noted his alignment with the previously mentioned
comments from Council members.

Kinneman observed that the cost to developers for well installation would be
comparable to connecting to the municipal system, but connection to the municipal
system would ensure a consistent and predictable water supply.

The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

B.

TEXT AMENDMENTS. Amendments to

I. Section 30-331 (Permitted Uses) of the Town of Oak Ridge Code of
Ordinances to allow Event Centers as a use by right in the GO-M (General
Office - Medium Intensity) district, GB (General Business) district, SC
(Shopping Center) district, PI (Public and Institutional) district and as a
Special Use Permit (S) in the AG (Agricultural) and RS-40 (Residential)
districts.

ii. Section 30-957 (General Requirements) of the Town of Oak Ridge Code of
Ordinances to amend Off Street Parking Requirements to include Event
Center.

iii. Section 30-9 (Definitions) of the Town of Oak Ridge Code of Ordinances to
define Event Center.

iv. Chapter 30, Article IX Division 5. Development Standards for Individual Uses
to add Event Center and applicable standards.

Bruce introduced multiple amendments, which are hereby incorporated by
reference and made a part of the minutes, pertaining to the addition of Event Center
as a use by right in several zoning districts and by Special Use Permit in RS-40 and
AG zoning districts. He noted that the Planning & Zoning Board had unanimously
recommended its approval to Town Council.

Kinneman opened the public hearing and explained that 20 minutes to speak would
be given to individuals in favor of the rezoning request and another 20 minutes to
those in opposition, followed with a five-minute period of rebuttals for both sides.

Proponents
e Bill Greco of Land Solutions, PO Box 347, noted his support for the text
amendments expressing that many property owners had communicated
their desire for an Event Center as a Use. He recognized that the
amendments had received multiple reviews over time and that substantial



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

effort from staff and the Planning & Zoning Board had been expended on
their behalf.

Opponents
None

Kinneman closed the public hearing.

Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone made a motion to approve the text amendments as presented, and
Councilman Michael Greeson seconded the motion.

Stone noted that the proposed amendments applied exclusively to RS-40 properties
of three acres or more, and that the Special Use Permit incorporated several
restrictions to safeguard adjoining property owners’ privacy and mitigate noise
concerns.

Schneider focused on concerns for running event centers in residential and
agricultural zones. She stressed that under the proposed amendments, the process
to qualify for a Special Use Permit as an event center would remain rigorous and
that Council maintained final authority over each application through its quasi-
judicial reviews. She pointed out that the quasi-judicial reviews would also allow
property owners and applicants a forum to voice their concerns.

Kinneman added that Council’s review of Special Use Permit applications provided
the latitude to impose additional restrictions, if necessary, thereby making
qualification more demanding.

The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS / COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION REPORTS

A.

Community Organization Reports

Oak Ridge Military Academy

Angie Williams, 2317 Oak Ridge Road, reported on upcoming events at the
Academy, including the Service Academy, which featured State Representative
Virginia Foxx, and Homecoming weekend, which would be open to the public.

Oak Ridge Elementary School

Principal Chris Sciandra announced that the school achieved an 86 percent pass rate
on State tests and had exceeded growth standards for more than two consecutive
years. He also reported that the car rider line was operating smoothly. Assistant
Principal Melissa Wilson introduced the Read-a-Thon and invited council members
to participate as mystery guest readers.

Comments from the Public



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

° Adrian Eckenrod, 5679 Timber Trace Way, introduced himself as a
candidate for Town Council and elaborated on his qualifications, vision and
commitments to the Town.

° Lindsey Clark, 6816 Koala Drive, announced her candidacy for Town Council
and outlined her qualifications, as well as three areas she identified for
improvement in the Town. She requested that Council consider adding a
splash pad to the second phase of Heritage Farm Park, noting that a splash
pad had ranked as a top priority in a survey conducted five years earlier.

. Ty Lindsay, 8874 Cravenwood Drive, presented himself as a candidate for
Town Council and highlighted his background as qualification for the role.
He identified three areas of focus and pledged to work toward their
improvement.

. Former school board member Michael Logan, 5202 Rambling Road, reported
on performance statistics for Northwest area schools, notably emphasizing
A-rated Oak Ridge Elementary School as ranking 14t in the State and second
in the County. He added that 57 students from the Northwest area were
among the 195 students enrolled in The Early College at Guilford, which is
ranked first in the State and 31st in the nation.

. John Browning, 8024 Linville Road, expressed his sentiments honoring the
late Roger Howerton for his contributions to Oak Ridge.

TOWN MANAGERS REPORT

A. Consideration / Approval of reappointment of:
e Patti Paslaru to Planning & Zoning Board and Board of Adjustment
e Phyllis Anders to Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
o Todd Hall to Water Advisory Committee

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve all reappointments as described by
the Town Manager, and Councilman Michael Greeson seconded. The motion passed
unanimously (4-0).

B. Consideration / Approval of Electronic Advertising on Guilford County website
Assistant Town Manager Sandra Smith requested that Council consider electronic
advertising on the County website, which was approved as a pilot program
legislated under local law Session Law 2017-210 in 2017. She explained that
budgeting for legal ads was difficult due to the unpredictability of the quantity,
frequency and breadth of each advertising need. In her research, she revealed the
average cost to advertise the Town'’s ad in the Greensboro News & Record since July
1, 2024, was $580 per ad, with some ads costing over $1,000. She stated that digital
ads on the county’s website would cost $10 per ad. She referred to a PowerPoint
presentation outlining the program included in the Council packet, which is hereby
incorporated by reference and made a part of the minutes. Smith added that the
motion to consider the request would proceed with public hearings by both the
Planning & Zoning Board and Town Council and be followed by an approval of an e-
notice publication agreement with Guilford County.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to recommend moving forward in the process to
allow electronic advertising on the Guilford County website, and Councilman Michael Greeson
seconded.

Town Attorney Michael Thomas intervened to explain that a consensus would
suffice over a motion, to prevent complications from multiple approval stages, as the
Development Ordinance would need to be amended before electronic advertising
could be authorized.

Thomas explained that the bill permitting electronic advertising on the Guilford
County website was passed in 2017 and took effect statewide in January 2018, with
its implementation restricted to a pilot program in Guilford County. He pointed out
that although the County considered it a local law, State statutes had not yet been
amended, and the pilot program had never been expanded beyond Guilford County.
Without proper codification as a statute, Thomas stressed reluctance to adopt the
practice should it expose the Town to legal ramifications regarding proper legal
advertising practices. However, he pointed out that the County had experienced no
challenges with digital advertising since the bill’s initiation and recommended
proceeding with the process, noting the potential for significant cost savings to the
Town through digital publication of legal notices.

Council agreed by consensus to move forward with the process to allow electronic advertising
on the Guilford County website.

C.

Any other business

Bruce reported that construction of the second phase of the Veterans Honor Green
was complete and that the boardwalk would be open to the public pending a final
inspection by Guilford County. He commended Parker Construction and Revington
Reeves Landscape Architecture for their work and noted that the project’s
contingency fund was exceeded by less than $2,000, which will be covered by
Special Events Committee funds rather than the Town'’s general fund.

Schneider attributed Councilman Jim Harton’s absence at the meeting to illness.

10. NEW BUSINESS

A.

Consideration / Approval of revised Water Fee Schedule

Bruce introduced the proposal to update Appendix A of the Town’s Water System
Rules and Regulations governing the water fees and charges schedule. He explained
that the changes proposed were reviewed and recommended by the Water Advisory
Committee, and they are as follows:
e Expansion of the base charge per month fee schedule to include larger meter
sizes and accommodate higher capacity commercial users,
e Establishment of a wholesale rate, which would be 10 percent less than the
retail rate, and
¢ Amendment of the water rate and fee schedule to include commercial users
and to confer the same rates to users in the extraterritorial jurisdiction.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve the revised Water Fee Schedule, and
Councilman Michael Greeson seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

B.

Consideration / Approval of addendum to Field Usage Policy with Oak Ridge
Youth Association (ORYA)

Kinneman explained that the purpose for reintroducing the ORYA Field Usage Policy
for consideration was to incorporate an addendum addressing sports camps and to
reconsider the insurance requirement.

Town Manager Bruce explained that the standard certificate of insurance provided
$1 million per incident and $2 million in aggregate. In response to Schneider’s
question, he stated that the liability terms sought were a standard request of any
contractor in service to the Town.

Kinneman inquired into the difference in premium between a $1 million and $2
million policy. Finance Officer Sam Anders responded that, in his experience, the
premium rates between the two policies would be negligible and that inflation had
influenced the increase to $2 million as a standard coverage that is required by the
Town'’s insurer. He noted that the standard coverage applied to rentals and park
usage for events.

Councilman Michael Greeson indicated that ORYA had recently signed a 10-year
contract with Guilford County Schools, which required a $1 million policy, for facility
usage. He questioned why the Town would require more.

Stone asked if ORYA had been informed of the change in insurance requirement.
Greeson noted that he had sent Philip Southern, ORYA president, a copy of the
addendum but had not received any feedback. Kinneman stated that he would not
oppose keeping the insurance requirement at $1 million, citing uncertainty about
the potential impact of the increase on ORYA. He suggested reconsidering the
increase to $2 million the following year. Kinneman said he thought that sufficient
support existed to keep the insurance requirement at $1 million.

Stone questioned the $500 cost to replace the scoreboard remote control in the
event of damage or loss. Bruce confirmed the replacement cost. Kinneman explained
that the remote control was likely a proprietary device designed to interact with the
scoreboard and that it was unlikely that the system could operate with a less costly
universal device.

Stone turned to the rebate program outlined in the policy and advocated a more
straightforward method of allowing ORYA to use facilities by setting up pre-
approved credit from which ORYA would draw to cover their expenses. Kinneman
stressed the need to separate expenses from any allowance to promote
transparency and accountability regarding what is provided and what is received.
He stressed that the $70 rebate per Oak Ridge resident, per sport, per season was a
level of support not offered by other towns and emphasized the importance of
distinguishing in two separate transactions the amount owed and what is rebated,
saying that credits often lose visibility in financial transactions.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Greeson inquired into the turnaround time to process a rebate. Assistant Town
Manager Smith said the process would likely take one to two weeks depending on
when the payment for field usage is received since checks are processed one time
weekly.

Kinneman stressed that the rebate method would preclude the Town from
becoming involved in ORYA'’s finances. Stone countered Kinneman’s points,
contending that the rebate method was a veiled attempt to penalize ORYA for past
transgressions. He stressed that the Town'’s field usage expenses had already been
reviewed and approved by the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board as well as Council
and that no additional expenses were anticipated. He maintained that the credit
method would enhance the partnership between the Town and the youth
association.

Schneider revealed her disfavor of the approved rebate model but conceded that it
was the model Council had agreed to and said she considered it best to proceed. She
said she supported the suggested increase in insurance requirements to align with
industry standards. Greeson said he opposed the increase, citing the short notice
regarding the change.

Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone made a motion to approve the updated Usage Policy and
addendum with the provisions to reduce the insurance requirement from $2 million to $1
million and to convert the approved rebate into a credit with a monthly draw for expenses.
Councilman Michael Greeson seconded the motion.

Greeson expressed a preference to have Councilman Jim Harton present to discuss
the rebate model further. Kinneman pointed out that a decision on the policy was
necessary because ORYA had already made a payment and a rebate was owed to
them. Greeson suggested implementing the policy and its addendum for 30 days to
allow the rebate to be processed and that the discussion resume at the next Council
meeting. Debate ensued regarding the merits of reworking the policy after its initial
implementation. Kinneman noted that a motion that was properly made and
seconded remained.

A vote was taken, and the motion failed (2-2) with Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone and Councilman
Michael Greeson voting for, and Mayor Jim Kinneman and Councilwoman Ann Schneider
voting against.

Mayor Jim Kinneman made a motion to approve the addendum with the provision that the
insurance requirement be reduced from $2 million to $1 million. Councilwoman Ann Schneider
seconded. The motion failed by a 2-2 vote with Mayor Jim Kinneman and Councilwoman Ann
Schneider voting in favor, and Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone and Councilman Michael Greeson
voting in opposition.

Mayor Jim Kinneman made a motion to approve the section of the addendum which would
allow processing of a $5 per Oak Ridge resident rebate for a sports camp held the previous

month, and Councilwoman Ann Schneider seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

Bruce pointed out that the policy provided for annual rebate payments, not monthly.

8



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve the policy and addendum for a
duration of 30 days, and Mayor Jim Kinneman seconded.

Thomas noted that the motion was largely similar to the previous vote, except for
the addition of a 30-day durational limit.

The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

C.

Consideration/Approval of Heritage Farm Park Phase 2 Master Plan concept
and design

Bruce presented the Heritage Farm Park Phase 2 Master Plan concept, which was
previously presented to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board in August by
consultant Jim Ford of McGill Associates. The presentation is incorporated by
reference and made a part of the minutes. He explained that the findings and
proposed conceptual layout were based off public survey results conducted by
McGill. Bruce reviewed the selected amenities and proposed layout and concluded
with McGill’s opinion of probable cost. He emphasized that the figures presented
were estimates intended to serve as planning tools for Council for future park
investments.

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Co-Chair Adrian Eckenrod added that the
Board’s initiative to add elements eligible for Parks and Recreation Trust Fund
(PARTF) grant funding was incorporated in the proposed concept design. He noted
that the Board had discussed future planning for a Phase 3 to include additional
parking, anticipating greater demand as the Park developed, and requested that the
proposed parking lot extension be designed to accommodate that growth. Eckenrod
stated that the Board considered the Adventure Play amenity to be better aligned
with the character of the park than a splash pad or water feature. He further noted
that the popularity of splash pads could strain existing parking capacity and entail
higher costs for the Town, including construction, drainage, and water recirculation
issues. He noted that the Board had also discussed staffing needs and recurring
costs for maintenance of the added amenities.

In response to a query by Greeson, Eckenrod explained that the recommended
pickleball court surfaces were a premium material designed specifically for best
play along with individual fencing of each court all, of which were included in the
estimated costs. He said it was not determined whether the surface would be
concrete or asphalt.

Schneider recalled from the presentation made to the Parks & Recreation Advisory
Board that installation of a splash pad would be further complicated by the absence
of a sewer system. Eckenrod added that without a sewer system, a splash pad would
require a water recirculation system, increasing the project cost by approximately
$1 million.

Discussion then focused on sound attenuation from the pickleball courts, shade
structures, flexible configuration of the sports courts to accommodate future
growth, parking concerns, and challenges related to hosting tournaments.



Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Kinneman stated that the next step would be to initiate a Request for Qualifications
(RFQ) for engineering designs of the Phase 2 concept and, at staff’s
recommendation, could include a request for sidewalk design. He pointed out that
$50,000 had been budgeted for sidewalk design, but nothing had been budgeted for
the Phase 2 design. Bruce noted that a budget amendment could be approved to
cover the design costs for Phase 2, although Kinneman pointed out that the exact
cost would remain unknown until RFQs were received. Bruce clarified that the
request would be for qualifications of a firm to design the concept and not for
quotes to design, noting that pricing would only be negotiated after the firm was
selected.

Questions from Council arose regarding the next steps for Phase 2. Stone pressed on
how to move the project forward expeditiously, prompting discussion on financing,
the possibility of additional loans, and whether to request design-build quotes based
on the concept layout or to pursue a fully engineered design. Kinneman pointed out
that the latter option for an engineered design would address elements such as
drainage, grading, stormwater mitigation, and erosion control, producing a moment-
in-time cost estimate that would be more accurate than the probable cost derived
from the concept design.

Bruce remarked that taking a design-then-bid-then-build approach would be more
efficient than a request for design-build quotations. He stated that while a design-
build was intended to expedite project initiation, it was inherently complex and
uncertain for government projects. He noted that without prior understanding of a
project’s cost, a design-build approach could result in managing multiple change
orders, some of which could be excessive.

Stone pressed to know how much time would be involved before the project could
be implemented. Bruce estimated a timeline of two weeks to advertise an RFQ, two
months to accept proposals, and six months to prepare a design for bidding.

Kinneman stressed the value of taking time to pursue PARTF funding, which could
result in a funding grant of several hundreds of thousands of dollars that the Town
would not have to spend. Bruce explained the challenges of pursuing PARTF grant
funding, noting that an award, if received, would likely be granted in two years and
at a smaller percentage than what was received for the first phase of the park.
Greeson asked about funding sources for the project other than raising taxes,
something that was undesirable, while Kinneman stressed the value of moving
intentionally and cautiously to make the project shovel-ready once funding was
secured. Schneider reinforced the need for careful planning, referencing the impact
of inflationary trends in the labor market and construction which had affected other
Town projects such as Phase 1 of Heritage Farm Park and the Farmhouse
Community Center. Stone expressed dissatisfaction with the pace of the project’s
initiation, advocating for budget adjustments and scaling back certain aspects of the
project to facilitate swifter progress.

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to instruct staff to initiate an RFQ for design of
the concept presented, and Mayor Jim Kinneman seconded.

10



11.

12.

Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

Schneider remarked that the approach was sensible and expediency would be taken
where it was practical.

Stone commented that the $900,000 spent on the Farmhouse, which he referred to
as the Redmon House, would have built Phase 2.

Kinneman advocated performing due diligence to produce a solid, shovel-ready plan
and potentially avoid the issues experienced in the construction of the Farmhouse.

Schneider clarified the costs which were involved in the two separate projects - the
Farmhouse and the park entrance plan - and said she disapproved of Stone’s
continued efforts to spread misinformation about the cost of the Farmhouse.

Kinneman emphasized his inability to control the speech of other Council members
and suggested that Stone follow his own advice by letting go of past issues.

The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

MONTHLY FINANCIAL UPDATE

Finance Officer Sam Anders presented the financial report for the month of August
2025, which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of the minutes. He
reported that fieldwork for the audit was being finalized.

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to approve the finance report as presented by
the Finance Officer, and Mayor Jim Kinneman seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

COMMITTEE REPORTS

A.

Finance Committee
No report
Water Advisory Committee

Spencer Sullivan reported that the committee was focused on expanding the
municipal water system through a recommendation to proceed with engineering of
the Town Core loop. He added that marketing strategies to promote the water
system were underway with two open house information sessions for citizens
scheduled for November 13, 2025, and January 10, 2026. In response to a question
posed by Greeson, Sullivan explained that the water system was entirely funded
through the water enterprise fund and would not impact the Town'’s operating
budget.

Historic Preservation Commission

No report

11



13.

Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

D. Planning & Zoning Board

No report

E. Board of Adjustment
No report

F. Mountains-to-Sea-Trail Committee
No report

G. Conservation Easement Committee
No report

H. Special Events Committee

Patti Dmuchowski announced that construction at Veterans Honor Green was
complete and that the committee continued to accept engraved brick paver orders.
She reported on the committee’s upcoming events for the remainder of the year.

L. Tree Board
John Browning reported on the Board’s upcoming participation in Heritage Day.

J. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
Adrian Eckenrod reported on the sports season at the psarks, the status of issues at
Heritage Farm Park and the Farmhouse, and the rental of Town-owned residence on
Linville Road. He announced upcoming events sponsored by the Board.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
. Frank Carroll, 1389 Forsyth Road in Kernersville, suggested that Council

review the construction of the Farmhouse as a learning exercise for future
project management.

. Adrian Eckenrod, 5679 Timber Trace Way, suggested Council consider
rescheduling Committee Reports to take place after Community
Organization Reports to place it in an earlier time slot.

° Lindsey Clark, 6816 Koala Drive, requested Council consider long-term
planning of Heritage Farm Park to create allowances for the addition of a

splash pad in the future.

. Sam Anders, 1829 Oak Ridge Road, spoke about the legacy left by the late
Roger Howerton in the fire department.

12



14.

15.

16.

Town Council Minutes: September 4, 2025

. Town Attorney Michael Thomas offered remarks about Roger Howerton,
adding that he held the record for presiding over the shortest meeting of the
Oak Ridge Town Council at 19 minutes.

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Greeson encouraged voter turnout, noting that the election was only eight weeks
away.

Stone readdressed cost details of the Farmhouse/Redmon House project and
encouraged voter turnout.

Schneider agreed with Carroll’s suggestion to review the Farmhouse construction
and advocated that the exercise take place after the Community Center was open
and fully operable. She stressed that strong community support had been received
for restoring the Farmhouse as a public meeting space.

Kinneman encouraged voter registration.
CLOSED SESSION
To discuss matters that are within the attorney-client privilege by providing instructions to
the town attorney about handling or settling claims, litigation, or other proceedings per

N.C.G.S. 143-318-11(a)(3).

Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone made a motion to enter into closed session at 9:39 p.m., and
Councilman Michael Greeson seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to return to open session at 9:53 p.m., and
Mayor Pro Tem Mike Stone seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

ADJOURNMENT

Councilwoman Ann Schneider made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:53 p.m., and Mayor
Pro Tem Mike Stone seconded. The motion passed unanimously (4-0).

Respectfully Submitted:

Sandra B. Smith, MMC, NCCMC
Assistant Town Manager/Town Clerk

Jim Kinneman
Mayor

13



	OAK RIDGE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

